
           

2020 CENSUS
COMPLETE COUNT STEERING COMMITTEE

(An Ad Hoc Committee Established by the Board of Supervisors) 

March 18, 2019
12:00 P.M.

Paramount Conference Room
777 Arnold Drive, Martinez

Supervisor Diane Burgis, Chairperson
Supervisor Candace Andersen, Vice Chair

District I: Lina Velasco • District II: Aparna Madireddi • District III: Linda Soliven 
District IV: Lauren Babb • District V: Lynn Reichard-Enea

Fran Biderman • Alvaro Fuentes • Samuel Houston • Melody Howe-Weintraub
Terry Koehne • Mariana Moore • Mark Orcutt • Andres Orozco • Ali Saidi

Facilitators: 
Barbara Riveira, County Administrator's Office

Kristine Solseng, Conservation and Development Department

Agenda
Items:

Items may be taken out of order based on the business of the day and preference
of the Committee

             

1. Call to Order and Introductions
 

2. Public comment on any item under the jurisdiction of the Committee and not on this
agenda (speakers may be limited to three minutes).

 

3.   RECEIVE and APPROVE the Record of Action for the February 19, 2019 of the 2020
Census Complete Count Steering Committee meeting. (Barbara Riveira, County
Administrator's Office)

 

4.   REVIEW applicable provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act and the County's Better
Government Ordinance. (Emlyn Struthers, Clerk of the Board's Office) - Est 5 min

 

5.   DISCUSS and APPROVE recommendation to form an Outreach Sub-Committee and a
Finance Sub-Committee. Discuss committee governance. (Supervisor Andersen) - Est
15 min

 

6.   DISCUSS the role and responsibilities of the regional working groups. (Barbara
Riveira, County Administrator's Office; Kristine Solseng, Conservation and
Development Department) - Est 10 min

 

7.   REVIEW the draft Strategic Outreach Plan and DETERMINE next steps. (Kristine
Solseng, Conservation and Development Department) - Est 20 min

 

8.   RECEIVE federal, State, and Regional updates on preparation for the Census.

1



8.   RECEIVE federal, State, and Regional updates on preparation for the Census.
(Barbara Riveira, County Administrator's Office; Kristine Solseng, Conservation &
Development Department) - Est 10 min

 

9.   RECEIVE update on the April 1st Kick-Off Event. (Lauren Babb, District IV
Appointee) - Est 5 min

 

10.   RECEIVE presentation on Language Accessibility. (Zhiyuan "John" Zhang, U.S.
Census Bureau, Kristine Solseng, Conservation and Development Department) - Est 30
min

 

11.   REVIEW meeting schedule and work plan. (Barbara Riveira, County Administrator's
Office) - Est 5 min

 

12. The next meeting is currently scheduled for April 15, 2019, at Contra Costa County
EMS Agency, 777 Arnold Drive, Paramount Room, Martinez.

 

13. Adjourn
 

The 2020 Census Complete Count Steering Committee will provide reasonable accommodations
for persons with disabilities planning to attend the Committee meetings. Contact the staff person
listed below at least 72 hours before the meeting. 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and
distributed by the County to a majority of members of the 2020 Census Complete Count Steering
Committee less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 651 Pine
Street, 10th floor, during normal business hours. 

Public comment may be submitted via electronic mail on agenda items at least one full work day
prior to the published meeting time. 

For Additional Information Contact: 

Barbara Riveira, County Administrator's Office
Phone (925) 335-1018, Fax (925) 646-1353

barbara.riveira@cao.cccounty.us

2



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT STEERING
COMMITTEE   3.           

Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: RECORD OF ACTION FOR THE FEBRUARY 19, 2019 MEETING
Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.:  

Referral Name: 
Presenter: Barbara Riveira, County Admin Office Contact: Barbara Riveira (925)

335-1018

Referral History:
County Ordinance requires that each County body keep a record of its meetings. Though the
record need not be verbatim, it must accurately reflect the agenda and the decisions made in the
meeting.

Referral Update:
Attached is the Record of Action for the February 19, 2019 meeting.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
RECEIVE and APPROVE the Record of Action for the February 19, 2019 meeting.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
DRAFT 2020 Census Steering Committee Record of Action for February 19, 2019

3



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT
STEERING COMMITTEE

  RECORD OF ACTION FOR
FEBRUARY 19, 2019

 

 

Present:  Chair Diane Burgis; District I Representative Lina Velasco; District II Representative Aparna
Madireddi; District III Representative Linda Soliven; District IV Representative Lauren Babb; District
V Representative Lynn Reichard-Enea; At Large Member Fran Biderman; At Large Member Melody
Howe-Weintraub; At Large Member Mariana Moore; At Large Member Mark Orcutt; At Large
Member Samuel Houston; At Large Member Terry Koehne; At Large Member Alvaro Fuentes; At
Large Member Andres Orozco; At Large Member Ali Saidi 

Staff
Present:

Barbara Riveira, CAO Sr. Management Analyst; Kristine Solseng, Conservation & Development Dept 

Attendees: Julie DiMaggio Enea, County Admin Office; Mark Goodwin, District III Chief of Staff; Jaime Jenett,
HSD Homeless Programs; Dom Pruett, District II Supervisor's Office; Kook Huber; Lia Bolden, U.S.
Census Bureau; Zhiyman Zhang, U.S. Census Bureau; Sandy Trujillo; Mariana Trujillo 

 

               

1. Welcome and Introductions (Supervisor Burgis)
 
  Chair Burgis convened the meeting at 2:05 p.m. and self-introductions were made

around the room.
 

2. Public comment on any item under the jurisdiction of the Committee and not on this
agenda (speakers may be limited to three minutes).

 
  No one requested to speak during public comment period
 

3. RECEIVE presentation providing a census overview and update on State and federal
guidelines and instructions.

  

 
  Lia Bolden, Northern California Partnership Coordinator, U.S. Census Bureau

presented a good overview of the importance of the census, why the census is done,
how the census data can make a difference in how funding is distributed for the next
10 years, and how the final data can make a difference with congressional seats as
well as redistricting. She also expressed that one of the primary concerns of the U.S.
Census Bureau is to maintain secure data and hiring community members to fill jobs
in the local area. This is the first census where an individual can go on-line or use a
phone to complete the census. The phone and on-line capabilities will have 12 other
languages available to assist with filling out the census. The census will be printed in
English and Spanish, and individuals can request a paper copy.

Supervisor Burgis requested that Ms. Bolden return to the Steering Committee to
provide a presentation on language access.

 

4



4. It is recommended that Steering Committee members develop rapport with community
organization, faith leaders, schools, and other community groups in order to further the
goals of the local census effort.

  

 
  Kristine Solseng presented an overview of the Complete Count Committee and

Regional Working Groups. 

Supervisor Burgis also requested that information be sent to all members about
training on the Brown Act and quorum requirements to get a better understanding of
the public meeting requirements and rules.

Supervisor Burgis requested that one of the charts “Integrating with Other Census
Outreach” be revised to include Cities, Special Districts and CBO’s

 

5. Next Step: Steering Committee is asked to recommend a budget to the Board of
Supervisors in March to meet the State Strategic Plan duedate.

  

 
  Kristine Solseng presented on the different elements that the Strategic Plan needed to

include as well as presented three options for budget presentation. A goal was set to
present the strategic plan and budget to the Board of Supervisors on March 26, 2019.

It was recommended that the Strategic Plan Framework under Additional Outreach
Strategies be modified to match messaging with hard-to-count population. It was
additionally requested that the Budget chart be made larger.

Supervisor Burgis recommended that an updated draft of the Strategic Plan be
presented at the next Steering Committee meeting.

 

6. DISCUSS Census 2020 Kick-off Event -- April 1, 2019 and offer suggestions for the
venue and structure of the event.

  

 
  Barbara Riveira provided a short presentation on the objectives of the Kick-off Event

and why April 1, 2019 was selected as the date for the Kick-off Event.

Lauren Babb and Sandy Trujillo volunteered to start a working group to provide
support for the event. Supervisor Burgis requested that staff prepare an outline of
what a regional work group does.

Members of the Steering Committee were asked to email Barbara Riveira any ideas
for the location of the event, event activities, and what media outlets should be invited
to the event. In addition, staff was instructed to invite the County's Public
Information Officer to the kick-off event.

 

7. Review tentative meeting schedule and work plan.   

 
  Supervisor Burgis reviewed the meeting schedule and stated committee members can

add additional items to the work plan. The committee decided to meet on the third
Monday of every month from 12:00 noon to 2:00 p.m.

 

5



 
AYE:  Chair Diane Burgis, District I Representative Lina Velasco, District II

Representative Aparna Madireddi, District III Representative Linda Soliven,
District IV Representative Lauren Babb, District V Representative Lynn
Reichard-Enea, At Large Member Ali Saidi, At Large Member Alvaro
Fuentes, At Large Member Andres Orozco, At Large Member Fran
Biderman, At Large Member Mariana Moore, At Large Member Mark
Orcutt, At Large Member Melody Howe-Weintraub, At Large Member
Samuel Houston, At Large Member Terry Koehne 

Passed 

8. The next meeting is currently scheduled for March 18, 2019 (Location to be
determined...).

 

ADJOURN
 
  Chair Burgis adjourned the meeting at 4:05 p.m.
 

 

For Additional Information Contact: 
Barbara Riveira, County Administrator's Office

Phone (925) 335-1018, Fax (925) 646-1353
barbara.riveira@cao.cccounty.us

6



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT STEERING COMMITTEE   4.           
Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: RALPH M. BROWN ACT AND COUNTY BETTER
GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE

Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.:  

Referral Name: 
Presenter: Contact: 

Referral History:
The Ad Hoc Census 2020 Complete Count Steering Committee is a public body that conducts
public meetings. As such, its members are required to comply with the provisions of the Brown
Act and the County's Better Government Ordinance (BGO).

The Ralph M. Brown Act was an act of the California State Legislature, authored by
Assemblymember Ralph M. Brown and passed in 1953, that guaranteed the public’s right to
attend and participate in meetings of local legislative bodies. The Brown Act was enacted in
response to mounting public concerns over informal, undisclosed meetings held by local elected
officials who were avoiding public scrutiny by holding secret "workshops" and "study sessions."
The Brown Act solely applies to California city and county government agencies, boards, and
councils.

The BGO is a local law enacted by the Board of Supervisors that applies specifically to Contra
Costa County government. Committee members and County staff are required to operate within
its guidelines. The Ordinance mandates a higher level of transparency and availability of
information to the public than does the Brown Act.

Referral Update:
A summary of the Brown Act and Better Government Ordinance along with selected provisions is
attached hereto. In addition, a video presentation of the Brown Act and the County Better
Government Ordinance as they apply to this Committee is available on the County's website at:
http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/mediacenter.aspx?VID=19 .

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
REVIEW applicable provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act and the County's Better Government
Ordinance.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
7

http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/mediacenter.aspx?VID=19


Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
Presentation-Open Meeting Policies
Brown Act - BGO Summary

8



Presented by

OVERVIEW OF OPEN 
MEETING POLICIES FOR 

ADVISORY BODIES

Emlyn Struthers
Management Analyst & Deputy Clerk
Contra Costa County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Brown Act

9



WHAT THIS PRESENTATION COVERS

1. Overview of the two main open meeting 

polices

• Brown Act

• Better Government Ordinance (“BGO”)

2. Resources available to you

210



LAYERS OF POLICIES: 
ADVISORY BODIES

• Federal 

• State 

• Local 

311



OPEN MEETING POLICIES

• The Brown Act

• Better Government Ordinance

412



THE BROWN ACT

• Guarantees the public's right to attend and 

participate in meetings of local legislative bodies

• Applies to local legislative bodies, such as the Board of 

Supervisors, and bodies created by formal action of those 

bodies, including advisory boards

513



BROWN ACT MEETING

• Any gathering of a majority of the members of the legislative 

body to:

• Hear

• Discuss, and/or

• Deliberate

… on any item of business that is within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the body

614



DISCUSSING BUSINESS OUTSIDE A 
MEETING IS GENERALLY 

PROHIBITED

• Majority may not discuss or transact 

business outside of a properly noticed 

meeting

• Personally

• Through Staff

• Via technology

• ‘Serial’ meetings are prohibited

715



THE BETTER GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE 
(BGO)

• Codifies main provisions of the 

Brown Act

• Applies to a broader set of the 

county’s advisory bodies and includes 

subcommittees 

• Goes beyond the disclosure 

requirements in the Brown Act

• Extends the notice period to a minimum of 

96 hours (4 full days) in advance

816



QUORUM

• A quorum is the minimum number of members who 
must be present at the meeting for business to be 
legally transacted (Brown Act)

• Generally, a quorum is a majority of the members 
of the body

• Quorum is fixed: No “moving” quorum

• Based on AUTHORIZED seats, not how many 
appointments are currently made

• No quorum, no meeting!

917



AGENDA POSTING AND PUBLIC 
ACCESS

• Physical posting at a location fully accessible to the 

public is required

• Must distribute the agenda and materials to those who 

have requested the materials within the last year

• Internet web posting is required for many bodies and is 

recommended for all bodies

1018



REQUIRED AGENDA CONTENT

• Where/when meeting is held

• Adequate description of agenda items

• Public access to agenda materials

• Disability-related modification or 
accommodation & how to request

• Public comment

1119



MINUTES/RECORD OF ACTIONS

• Must be kept in the county’s 

custody and available for 

public inspection

• Must be kept indefinitely 

(permanent record)

1220



MEETING IN CLOSED SESSION

• Meeting in closed session is allowed only for specific 

matters as expressly authorized by statute.

• Advisory bodies are not 

authorized to hold closed 

sessions

1321



PENALTIES & REMEDIES

• Removal from role

• Criminal Penalties

• Knowing violations are a misdemeanor

• Civil Remedies

• Any interested person may bring a lawsuit

• Body has chance to cure and correct

• Certain illegal actions may be voided

• Costs and attorney fees awarded

1422



RESOURCES

• Clerk of the Board Website: 

• http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us/3418/

• Handbook

• Videos and online trainings

• Staff assistance and support

• Advisory body staff

• Clerk of the Board

1523

http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us/3418/


1624



TRAINING 

• Training Certification Form

• Complete within first two months of appointment

1725



QUESTIONS? ASK US!

Clerk of the Board, Main Office

(925) 335-1900

ClerkoftheBoard@cob.cccounty.us

Emlyn Struthers, Management Analyst & Deputy Clerk

(925) 335-1919

Emlyn.Struthers@cob.cccounty.us

1826

mailto:ClerkoftheBoard@cob.cccounty.us
mailto:Emlyn.Struthers@cob.cccounty.us


27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT STEERING COMMITTEE   5.           
Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: Governance and Committees
Submitted For: Diane Burgis, District III Supervisor 
Department: Board of Supervisors District III
Referral No.:  

Referral Name: 
Presenter: Contact: 

Referral History:
Chair Burgis recommends the approval and creation of two Complete Count Steering Committee
sub-committees. The Outreach and Finance sub-committees will be composed solely by Complete
Count Steering Committee members, and will be advisory in nature. The sub-committees will be
staffed by members of the Chair's staff, with Barbara Riveira, County Administrator's Office
filing the appropriate notice of the meetings.

Referral Update:
None at this time.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Discussion and approval of the recommendation to form two sub-committees. Solicitation of
volunteers to serve on the Outreach and Finance subcommittees.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

55



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT
STEERING COMMITTEE   6.           

Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: DISCUSSION OF THE ROLE OF THE REGIONAL WORKING GROUPS
Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.:  

Referral Name: 
Presenter: Barbara Riveira, County Admin

Office & Kristine Solseng, DCD
Contact: Kristine Solseng 925-674-7809 or

Barbara Riveira 925-335-1018

Referral History:
At the February 19, 2019 Steering Committee meeting, Supervisor Buris requested that staff
prepare an outline of what a regional work group does.

Referral Update:
Attached is a description of the role and responsibilities of a regional Working Group. Also
attached is a Proposed Regional Working Group map of the boundaries. The map does not follow
Board of Supervisor’s district boundaries, but rather Regional Transportation Planning
Commission boundaries. This map better reflects the directive from the Board of Supervisors for
a Central, East, South, and West Regional Working Group. The map correlates to where people
self-identify and does not split cities like the Board of Supervisor’s district boundaries map.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Review and approve role and responsibilities of the regional working groups.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
Regional Working Group Role and Responsibilities
Map of Proposed Regional Working Groups

56



Regional Working Group Role and Responsibilities: 

 The Regional Working Groups are a liaison between the Complete Count Steering Committee 

and the local community at-large to maximize participation and response rates by increasing 

awareness of the census to ensure an accurate 2020 Census count. There are Regional Working 

Groups in Central County, East County, South County, and West County. See attached map.  

Members of the Regional Working Groups speak the language and know the pulse of its 

community, therefore establishing an information highway that even the internet cannot rival – 

neighbor informing neighbor.  

The Regional Working Group should solicit a volunteer or select a chairperson/spokesperson to 

bring the group together to focus on and set clear achievable goals and objectives and report 

back to the Steering Committee.   They may recruit members for their respective teams; ideal 

candidates for a Work Group are those community members who have expertise, influence, 

and experience in the area of the respective committee.  Committees that invest time, 

resources, and energy in this project are more productive and successful. 

Activities include: 

1. Support Complete Count Steering Committee in developing Implementation Plans (April – 

August, 2019) 

 Identify areas of the community that may need extra outreach efforts, either a 

geographical area or a population group that might be hard to count; 

 Identification of potential locations for Questionnaire Assistance Center 

(QAC)/Questionnaire Action Kiosks (QAK) 

 Provide input on outreach program structure, including Messaging Partners, Mini-

Grants, and Adopt-A-Block programs.  

 Host Census Solutions Workshops to brainstorm and collaborate on the best ways to 

reach hard-to-count communities within the region. The following groups should be 

included in the Census Solutions Workshops.   

o CBO’s - Non-profits, community organizers, neighborhood organizations, 

advocacy groups, etc. 

o Cultural Groups – Community organizations, advocacy group, neighborhoods 

sharing the same culture 

o Faith Based Organizations - Congregations, churches, spiritual communities, 
temples, synagogues, mosques, etc., 

o Immigrant Communities - Community organizations, advocacy groups, and non-

profits serving immigrant communities 

57



o Labor - Labor unions and local affiliates will be engaged through Contra Costa 

County 
o Higher Education- Representatives from our community colleges and universities  

o Business - Entities who can promote Census participation to their customers or 
clients, existing marketing channels, etc.   

o K-12 - School District and Charter Network Representatives (such as student 

services, family engagement, communications, etc.) 

o Unincorporated Community Advisory bodies– Representatives for the 

unincorporated areas of Contra Costa County 

o Cities - Representatives from each city (as assigned by city leadership) 

o People with Disabilities - Organizations supporting people with intellectual, 

physical, or mental impairments who will need assistance and/or 

accommodations to fully participate in the Census. 

o Elected Officials - Representatives from elected officials (Federal, State, & Local)  

o Seniors - Service providers, advocacy organizations, & individual leaders serving 

senior citizens 

o Affordable Housing - Affordable housing developers, service providers, and 
housing authorities 

o Children 0-5 - Childcare, early education programs, and non-profits serving 
children ages 0-5 (First 5 and Early Care & Education) 

o Health - Public Health Departments, clinics, hospitals, and other health-related 

service providers 

o LGBTQ - Community organizations, service providers, and individuals advocating 

for LGBTQ folks 

o Unhoused - Organizations, service providers, and advocates supporting the 

unhoused community 

o Workforce- Workforce Investment Board representatives and job training 
programs (This group will be focused on recruiting for Census jobs, especially 

enumerators)  
  

2. Assist in Recruiting for Census Jobs (March – January 2020)  

 Disseminating information about census job openings for the 2020 Census.  Information 

will include the number of jobs available and types of jobs available. 

 

3. Implementing Strategic Plan (September, 2019 – July 2020) 

 Collaborate with community organizations to inform individuals of the importance of 

participating in the 2020 Census and the benefits derived from census data. 

 Assist in implementing and promoting QAC and QAK locations  

58



 Encourage local organizations, businesses, and faith communities to participate in the 

Census Messaging Partners program to include Census messages in local newspapers, 

newsletters, fliers, social media, business packaging, and other messaging opportunities.  

 Promote Mini-grant opportunities to local organizations to implement outreach 

strategies such as block parties, leveraging existing community resources, hosting sports 

tournaments, or other local outreach strategies  

 Reach out to local community based organizations, faith based communities, and local 

businesses to participate in Adopt-A-Block program 

 Assist in activities between the Census Bureau and the local government, such as 

participation and identifying other resources and activities. 

 Facilitates census awareness for local schools from prekindergarten through twelfth 

grade, as well as postsecondary education institutions in the area.  May also encourage 

school administrators, teachers, and students to use Statistics in Schools materials . 

 Create and coordinate activities and materials for local faith-based institution in the 

promotion of the 2020 Census awareness and participation. 

 Facilitate ways to get the census message to all community households, using all available 

sources such as local newspapers, newsletters, fliers, local festivals, billboards, social media, 

radio, and television. 

 Prepare for a mass media mobilization, build awareness of the census and its benefits 

and motivate response through social media, newsletters, and other communications; 

 Create and coordinate activities that involve businesses in census awareness, such as 

distribution of census information and census messages on packaging (grocery bags) 

and the inclusion of the census logo and message on sales promotion materials. 

 Use a “grassroots” approach to working with community-based organizations and 

groups who have direct contact with households who may be hard to count; 

 Customize promotional materials for local area; 

 Coordinate and implement special regional events. 

 

4. Assist with Non-Response Follow Up 

 

 Assist in developing and implementing a Non-Response Follow Up outreach plan in 

collaboration with Census Bureau, State, and Regional efforts.  

 

 

 

 

59



WEST

SOUTH

CENTRAL

EAST

District 5

District 3

District 5

District 2

District 1

District 4

Legend
Propopsed Regional Workgroup Areas
BOS District 1
BOS District 2
BOS District 3
BOS District 4
BOS District 5

Proposed Regional Working Group Boundaries

0 5 102.5
Miles

¯Map created on 3/13/2019 by Contra Costa County
Department of Conservation and Development, GIS Group60



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT STEERING
COMMITTEE   7.           

Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: Review of DRAFT Strategic Outreach Plan
Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: 1  

Referral Name: Strategic Plan Update 
Presenter: Kristene Solseng, DCD Contact: Kristine Solseng (925)

674-7809

Referral History:
At the February 19, 2019 Steering Committee meeting, Supervisor Burgis requested staff to
update the draft Strategic Plan and present it at the next Steering Committee meeting.

Referral Update:
The county is required to provide the state with a Strategic Plan within 60 days of entering into the
County-Optional Outreach Agreement. Contra Costa County has been allocated $362,605 for
Census 2020 Outreach efforts as part of the County-Optional Outreach Agreement. The
anticipated due date for the Strategic Plan is around May 7th. The following elements are required
elements of the Strategic Plan 

Outreach Plan,
Approach,
Partnership Coordination,
Resouces and Infrastructure,
GIS data and maps,
Language Access Plan,
Local Complete County Committee,
Workforce Development, 
Budget,
Timeline, and
Measured Results.

The budget included is a Phase I Budget, which just allocates the State funds and notes
anticipated County in-kind staff costs. As part of a more robust implementation planning process,
the budget will be revisited to determine appropriate funding levels and the sources.

A draft Strategic Plan is attached for review.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
61



Steering Committee members are invited to provide comments on the draft Strategic Plan via
email to staff by April 5, 2019. A final Strategic Plan will be brought before the Steering
Committee at the April 15th meeting.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
Draft Strategic Plan
A. Maps
B1. Language Stats
B2. Language Resources
C. Timeline

62



 
County of 
Contra Costa 
California 

 

 

 

 

 

Census 2020: 

Strategic Plan 

 

 
 

 
 

April xx, 2019 

Contra Costa County Complete Count Steering 

Committee  

63



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

1 
 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Introduction…………………………………………………………………………………… 2 

 

I. Outreach Plan …………………………………………………………………….…. 4 

 

II. Approach…………………………………………………………………………….… 5 

 

III. Partnerships and Coordination…………………………………………….….……. 6 

 

IV. Resources and Infrastructure……………………………………………..….….….. 6 

 

V. Geospatial Data/Mapping……………………………………………………………... 7 

  

VI. Language Access 

Plan……………………………………………………………………………………… 7 

 

VII. Complete Count 

Committee………………………………………………………………………….….. 8 

 

VIII. Workforce 

Development………………………………………………………………………….. 9 

 

IX. Budget…………………………………………………………………………….…. 10 

 

X. Timeline……………………………………………………………………………… 10 

 

XI. Measurement/Results……………………………………………………………… 11 

 

Attachment A: Hard to Count Maps 

Attachment B: Language Access Plan Spreadsheet 

Attachment C: Timeline 

  

64



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

2 
 

Introduction 
The federally mandated census occurs every 10 years and the next decennial Census will be 

conducted in April 2020.  The census is an actual enumeration of the population living in the 

United States, citizens or noncitizens alike.  The census data collected in April will be used for 

the next decade to distribute Congressional seats to states and apportion more than $675 billion 

in federal grants to tribal, state and local governments. Census data is also used to make 

decisions at every level of government, such as where to build schools, hospitals and senior 

centers.  Historically, however, certain populations have been undercounted including 

immigrants, minorities, linguistically isolated groups, homeless and transient populations, and 

those living in low-income households.  According to The George Washington Institute of Public 

Policy at The George Washington University, an estimated $1950 in federal funding for each 

person not counted will be lost every year over the next ten years for much needed programs in 

our communities.  California and our communities have so much to lose if an accurate count is 

not accomplished.   

 

Challenges in 2020 

The Census Bureau faces challenges counting certain households and population groups, 

regardless of budget and staffing.  These include recent immigrants, households with limited 

English proficiency, households with low income, racial/ethnic minorities, children under 5 years 

old, persons who are disabled, rural residents, renters, and those with unstable or 

unconventional housing.  California has historically been the hardest-to-count state in the 

nation.  In 2016, about 75% of all Californians belonged to one or more groups that tend to be 

undercounted.   

 

Contra Costa County has many of these hard to count groups.   

• 24.7% are foreign born 1  

• 34.8% speak a language other than English at home 1 

• 5.7% are under 5 years old 1 

• 7.5%  have a disability 1 

• 14.8% are at or below the poverty rate 2 

 

It is essential for the State, counties, cities, and communities to partner with the U. S. Census 

Bureau to obtain a complete count.  The goal for Census 2020 is to achieve the same or higher 

self-response rate as was achieved in 2010, despite the additional challenges faced by hard-to-

count populations and the current political climate.  Maintaining a high self-response rate is 

especially critical, since the Census Bureau is expected to face significant challenges in 

recruiting well-qualified enumerators as well as a reduced budget for non-response follow up. 

 

 

  

                                                
1 US Census Bureau Populatio1n Estimates 2018 (https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/contracostacountycalifornia) 

 
2 California Poverty Method (CPM) 2014-2016 (http://www.ppic.org/publication/poverty-in-california/) 

65



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

3 
 

Goals  

The following are the Goals of the Contra Costa County Complete Count effort.  

 

 

1. Achieve a Self-Response Rate of at least 76.9% (2010 Self Response Rate according to 

the US Census Bureau); 

2. Increase participation in hard-to-count communities;  

3. Collaborate with the U.S. Census Bureau, State, regional groups, the Regional CBO, 

Contra Costa cities and special districts, and community organizations to avoid 

duplication and effectively communicate the Census message; 

4. Build additional capacity and strengthen Contra Costa County community-based 

organizations through Census outreach efforts. 

 

  

66



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

4 
 

 

I. Outreach Plan 
Contra Costa County’s Outreach Plan is designed to work with local organizations at the 

grassroots level to ensure all residents, in particular the hard-to-count (HTC) populations, self-

respond to the Census 2020 Questionnaire. To make optimum use of the limited funding 

allocated for Census outreach, the County intends to leverage the efforts of the U.S. Census 

Bureau Partnership Program, the State of California Complete Count Committee, the Regional 

Administrative Community Based Organizations, and local foundation/community-based 

organization efforts. Using a data-driven approach, the outreach plan capitalizes on existing 

public resources and partners with local government and community-based organizations to 

catalyze grassroots energy.  

 

Contra Costa County’s Outreach Plan centers on the idea that by working with various 

community partners and providing a range of options for collaboration, we can reach HTC 

residents through a variety of means. The Outreach Plans has five key programs in which  

community partners may participate:  

 

1. Messaging Partners: Community Partners agree to amplify Census messaging through 

social media, newsletters, and email blasts. Messages may be targeted to specific 

populations and in-language as needed. 

2. Host Questionnaire Assistance Centers or Questionnaire Action Kiosks. 

3. Apply for a Mini-Grant to implement a Census Outreach idea, such as   

 Community Events 

 Youth Film Festivals 

 Soccer Tournaments 

 CBO outreach efforts (to fund larger CBO outreach events to leverage existing 

resources) 

4. Adopt-a-Block Program: Community Organization volunteers to canvass in HTC 

Census Blocks to encourage residents to fill out their Census questionnaires. This 

program will work in concert with SwORD’s live self-response data to target areas with a 

low self-response rate. Community Organizations and/or volunteers will be provided with 

training and a stipend for the canvassing.  

5. Census Speakers Bureau: The County will work to match requests for a Census 2020 

Speaker at community events with local trusted messengers, Complete Count 

Committee Members, and Census staff to present at various local events.    

  

In addition to the primary outreach programs, County Costa County will collaborate with the 

Census Bureau and the State to promote events such as Census/Sundays/Saturdays, business 

partnerships, and Census in Schools events.  

 

Specifics on how we will achieve this are provided below.  

 

  

67



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

5 
 

II.  Approach 
 

Identify least likely to respond areas and population vis-à-vis census tracts within the 

local jurisdiction.  

Contra Costa County used a variety of data sources to determine where our HTC populations 

are located, including the Census Bureau’s Planning Dataset and the State of California HTC 

Database. In addition, a comprehensive language analysis was completed to better understand 

the language needs throughout the county.   

 

By using the methods above, the County has identified the following least likely to respond 

areas. 

 Immigrant Communities 

 Non-English Speakers 

 Cultural and Ethnic Populations 

 Minority Populations 

 Poverty Population 

 Youth, aged 0-5 

 Youth, aged 18-24 

 Rural Residents  

 People with Disabilities 

 LBGTQ 

 Veterans 

 Unhoused Residents 

 Areas with limited internet access 

 Renters 

 Elderly 

 

A map series is attached. (Attachment A)  

 

Describe research methodology used to identify HTC/least Likely to respond 

populations, barriers, challenges and opportunities.  

Staff will provide this information in more detail.  

 

  

68



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

6 
 

III.  Partnership Coordination 
  

Having a strong understanding of both local needs and resources from Federal, State, and 

Regional efforts, the County has developed a plan to coordinate with Census partners at all 

levels. The following outlines the key components of the plan.  

 

1. Overview of Role and Resources document is in development, which outlines what 

resources are provided by the US Census Bureau staff, State Complete Count 

Committee, the Regional CBOs, the County, and local cities and community 

organizations. 

2. Identify community organizations serving local HTC population and inform organization 

about resources available for Census outreach.  

3. Ongoing Communication 

a. Scheduled meetings with Census, State, and Administrative Community-Based 

Organization (ACBO) 

b. Steering Committee and Regional Subcommittee Meetings 

c. Communication Network for opportunities 

 

IV. Resources and Infrastructure 
 

Contra Costa County has designated Kristine Solseng as the primary GIS contact to interface 

with SwORD mapping portal. Kristine has worked as a GIS planner for 12 years and has 

extensive knowledge of ESRI mapping products, including ArcOnline and Portal.  

 

Questionnaire Assistance Centers (QACs) and Questionnaire Action Kiosks (QAKs) will be a 

key resource to ensuring there is a complete count in 2020. The following outlines the potential 

types of QACs and QAKs that will be deployed in Contra Costa County.   

 QACs are locations staffed with Census Partnership Staff, knowledgeable personnel, or 

a trained Census Volunteer to assist residents to complete their forms. These may be 

established as one-time events or be open throughout the survey period.   

 QAKs are digital Census Kiosks that are available for residents to have questions 

answered through an easy to use interface or via Census Ambassadors. The kiosks may 

reside on existing computers at libraries or service locations. Alternatively, they may be 

as simple as a tablet device or app that is portable. QAKs will be activated prior to and 

throughout the survey period. 

 

The number of QACs and QAKs will largely depend on resources and partnerships with the 

Census Bureau, the State, and the Administrative Regional Community Organization. The 

County will identify potential sites including: 

 Libraries (QAKs) 

 County Service locations (QAKs) 

 Community Based Organizations (QACs or QAKs) that volunteer host a QAC or 

QAK 

69



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

7 
 

 Churches, Synagogues, Mosques, Temples, and other Faith Based locations 

(QACs or QAKs) that volunteer to host a QAC or QAK 

 Schools (QAK) 

 Other locations determined at Kick-Off Event and other community outreach 

events 

  

V.  Geospatial Data or Mapping of the following: 
  

The County has or will be developing the following data products:  

 HTC/least likely to respond 

 County Resources/office to be leveraged in HTC areas 

 County Census Partners 

 Detailed language maps (https://arcg.is/0HLe8v) 

 

A copy of Hard to Count/Low Response Score maps are attached. (Attachment A) 

 

VI. Language Access Plan 
 

Over 36% of Contra Costa County residents speak a language other than English at home, with 

over 150,000 speaking English less than very well. Given the largest city in Contra Costa 

County is about 130,000, non-English speakers comprise a larger portion of the population than 

any given city. For this reason, having a robust language access plan is critical.   

 

A comprehensive spreadsheet has been developed to identify the number of people in Contra 

Costa County who may need in-language resources, the resources available from the Census 

Bureau, the State, the Regional ACBO, the County, and local community organizations that 

speak each language. This spreadsheet will be also used to identify gathering locations that 

may be suitable for QAC/QAKs for each language. This is a working document to help the 

County best direct existing resources and identify areas in which additional language assistance 

may be required. A copy of the spreadsheet is attached. (Attachment B) 

 

Our efforts will build on the ACBO and State of California efforts to provide in-language 

services. The ACBO is required to provide a plan for at least the top six non-English languages 

in the region. The ACBO could provide QAC/QAKs, call centers, mobile resources, or other 

tools to provide in-language services. The State of California is anticipated to provide materials 

and resources as well as consistent messaging. 

 

Additionally, the County will provide both written and verbal translating services at workshops 

and other outreach events when needed. 

 

 

  

70



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

8 
 

VII. Complete Count Committee 
  

Contra Costa County Complete Count Committee is structured with a core Steering Committee 

supplemented with Regional Work Groups.  The Board of Supervisors appointed the Complete 

Count Steering Committee members on February 12, 2019. 

  

The Steering Committee consists of 16 members led by, and including, Chairperson, County 

Supervisor Diane Burgis and Vice Chairperson, County Supervisor Candace Andersen. Each of 

the five County Supervisors designated a member and there are nine at-large members, all of 

whom were appointed by the Board of Supervisors following an open recruitment and interview 

process.  The members include:  

 

Supervisor Diane Burgis – County Board of Supervisors Chair 

Supervisor Candace Andersen – County Board of Supervisors Vice Chair 

Lina Velasco – City of Richmond Community Development Director District I 

Aparna Madireddi – San Ramon Diversity Coalition and Culture in the 
Community Committee 

District II 

Linda Soliven – Retired teacher and Community Advocate District III 

Lauren Babb – Planned Parenthood, Public Affairs Director District IV 

Lynn Reichard-Enea – Board of Supervisors District Representative  District V 

Fran Biderman – First Five, Family Economic Security Partnership 
Coordinator 

At Large Seat 

Alvaro Fuentes – Community Clinic Consortium, Executive Director At Large Seat 

Samuel Houston – Small Business Owner, Member Economic 
Opportunity Council, and Changing Lives Community Ministry Volunteer 

At Large Seat 

Melody Howe-Weintraub – Multi-faith ACTION Coalition, Chair At Large Seat 

Terry Koehne – County Board of Education, Chief Communications 
Officer 

At Large Seat 

Mariana Moore – Ensuring Opportunity Campaign to End Poverty in 
Contra Costa, Director 

At Large Seat 

Mark Orcutt – East Bay Leadership Council and Contra Costa Economic 
Partnership, Communications Director 

At Large Seat 

Andres Orozco – College Student, Community Volunteer, and St. Mary’s 
College Resident Advisor/Head Receptionist 

At Large Seat 

Ali Saidi – Stand Together Contra Costa (immigrant justice), Director At Large Seat 

 

 

Contra Costa County’s Complete County Committee reports to the Board of Supervisors. There 

are four Regional Working Groups, which serve as a liaison from the Steering Committee to the 

local community. The Regional Working Groups will be instrumental in developing the 

Implementation Plan. In addition to the Regional Working Groups, additional subcommittees or 

working groups may be identified to work on specific topics. The structure of the Complete 

Count Committee is provided below.  

71



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

9 
 

 
 

The Regional Working Groups will be comprised elected officials and staff from local 

government, community groups, faith-based organizations, and anyone else who is interested in 

Census 2020 outreach. Additional work groups may formed at the direction of the Steering 

Committee to better understand a particular population sub group  (i.e. immigrants, youth, or the 

homeless population) or a particular organization type (service providers, schools, etc.) if 

needed.  

 

The Local Complete Count Committee is staffed by the County Administrator’s Office.  

 

 

VIII.   Workforce Development 
The County has developed a Census 2020 webpage as a resource that links to the Census 

recruitment page, as well as the State Resource Page, to include the development of a 

database to capture and develop relationships with interested community groups.   

 

Additionally the County’s Workforce Development Board will post job opportunities in career 
centers, make staff and clients aware of them, and shared them with our networks (via email 
and in meetings). The email lists operated by the Workforce Development Board reach about 
140 partners, including government agencies, education partners, contractors, and community 
based organizations. These partner organizations then share postings with their networks. 
 
The Workforce Development Board will integrate outreach for Census jobs with a number of 
their existing career center workshops, including “Beyond the Basics” and “Applying for 
Government Jobs.” The Career Centers also have a Resource Room with computer labs and 
can assist residents in applying for Census jobs. 
  

Board of 
Supervisors

Complete Count 
Steering 

Committee

West County 
Regional 

Working Group

North County 
Regional 

Working Group

East County 
Regional 

Working Group

South County 
Regional 

Working Group

Ad Hoc Working 
Groups if needed

72



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

10 
 

 

 

VIII.  Budget 
 

Tasks Total 
County Staff 

In Kind State Grant 

Grant Administration 60,260  24,000  36,260  

GIS (data analysis and map 
production) 50,000    50,000  

Complete County 
Committee/Sub-Committee 
Meetings 155,345  88,000  67,345  

Partnership Coordination 10,000  5,000  5,000  

Media 51,000  15,000  36,000  

Workforce Development 19,000  10,000  9,000  

Outreach (includes meeting 
venues, materials, food, 
mileage, etc) 132,000  60,000   77,000  

In-Language Outreach (staff 
coordination) 10,000    10,000  

    Transition Services 10,000    10,000  

QAC/QAK 15,000    15,000  

     On Site Staff (Census or 
Census Ambassador) 20,000  20,000    

     Interpretation Contract 10,000    10,000  

Non Response Follow Up 12,000    12,000  

Communication Partners 
Program 25,000  10,000  15,000  

Speaker Bureau 10,000    10,000  

Total 599,605  237,000  362,605  
 

 

 

IX. Timeline 
See Timeline Attached (Attachment C)  

 

73



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

11 
 

X. Measure Results 
  

Accountability Measures by program 

 Community Messaging Partners 

o Number of Forms from Community Partners 

o Report of number of estimated people reached per message 

o Number of in-language messages 

 QAC/QAKs 

o List of potential locations 

o List of language needs 

o List of final QAC/QAK locations, languages provided, number of people served 

 Complete Count Steering Committee Meeting 

o Meeting Agendas and Records of Action 

 Regional Working Groups 

o List of invitee list 

o Summary of Workshops 

o Summary of Working Group meetings 

 Workforce Development 

o List of jobs advertised and list of partners  

 Speakers Bureau 

o List of local leaders to speak on the Census  

o Calendar of events and assigned speaker 

o Toolkit for Speakers 

 Media 

o Summary of social media posts and engagement analytics 

o List of Press Releases and Events and associated media mentions 

 

Data to be Collected  

Data collected to be categorized by the programs Contra Costa County community partners 

might engage in 

 Community Partners 

o Community Partner Location, 

o Service areas,  

o HTC population served, 

o Program commitments (messaging, QAC/QAK, mini-grant, adopt-a-block, 

speaker host) 

 Other TBD as implementation plans are developed 

  

Evaluation/Methodology/Approach:  

The final self-response rates will be the ultimate test in determining the effectiveness of Contra 

Costa County’s Complete Count outreach efforts. In particular, the self-response rate for 

traditionally hard to count communities. 

 

74



2020 Census Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
 

12 
 

A review of data collected and how it is correlated to census participation will include 

 Correlation between community events and self-response rates 

 Correlation between Adopt-A-Block program and self -response rates 

 Correlation between QAC/QAK locations and self-response rates 

75



Attachment A 
 

76



Attachment A 
 

77



Attachment A 
 

78



Attachment A 
 

79



Attachment A 
 

80



Attachment A 
 

81



Attachment A 
 

82



Attachment A 
 

83



Attachment A 
 

84



Attachment A 
 

 

85



 Attachment B‐1: Key Statistics for Languages Spoke in Contra Costa County

Estimate Percent of County Less than Very Well Percent of all  LVS LVW as Percent of Language More than 1 language
Total Population Estimate (5 years and old) 1,082,244  100.0% 152,665                 39.4% 14.1%
Speak only English 694,824      64.2% NA NA NA
Visually Impaired (calculated for total population) 21,606        1.9% NA NA NA
Hearing Impaired (calculated for total population) 35,087        3.1% NA NA NA
Spanish 196,833      18.2% 81,467                   21.0% 41.4%
Chinese (incl. Mandarin, Cantonese) 39,569        3.7% 21,288                   5.5% 53.8% X
Tagalog (incl. Filipino) 31,292        2.9% 11,012                   2.8% 35.2% X
Persian (incl. Farsi, Dari) 9,874          0.9% 4,446                     1.1% 45.0% X
Vietnamese 9,102          0.8% 4,814                     1.2% 52.9%
Russian 7,990          0.7% 2,735                     0.7% 34.2%
Hindi 6,809          0.6% 1,464                     0.4% 21.5%
Portuguese 6,583          0.6% 2,927                     0.8% 44.5%
Arabic 6,498          0.6% 1,170                     0.3% 18.0%
Punjabi 6,109          0.6% 2,192                     0.6% 35.9%
Korean 5,815          0.5% 3,520                     0.9% 60.5%
Nepali, Marathi, or other Indic languages 5,708          0.5% 1,650                     0.4% 28.9% X
Other languages of Asia 5,177          0.5% 2,080                     0.5% 40.2% X
French (incl. Cajun) 4,806          0.4% 571                         0.1% 11.9%
Japanese 4,692          0.4% 1,752                     0.5% 37.3%
Ilocano, Samoan, Hawaiian, or other Austronesian languages 4,671          0.4% 1,375                     0.4% 29.4% X
Telugu 4,605          0.4% 344                         0.1% 7.5%
German 3,523          0.3% 239                         0.1% 6.8%
Urdu 3,148          0.3% 555                         0.1% 17.6%
Other and unspecified languages 2,450          0.2% 438                         0.1% 17.9% X
Italian 2,204          0.2% 385                         0.1% 17.5%
Malayalam, Kannada, or other Dravidian languages 1,974          0.2% 49                           0.0% 2.5% X
Thai, Lao, or other Tai‐Kadai languages 1,965          0.2% 991                         0.3% 50.4% X
Yoruba, Twi, Igbo, or other languages of Western Africa 1,932          0.2% 1,134                     0.3% 58.7% X
Tamil 1,894          0.2% 124                         0.0% 6.5%
Ukrainian or other Slavic languages 1,655          0.2% 492                         0.1% 29.7% X
Other Indo‐European languages 1,614          0.1% 583                         0.2% 36.1% X
Gujarati 1,452          0.1% 512                         0.1% 35.3%
Amharic, Somali, or other Afro‐Asiatic languages 1,426          0.1% 627                         0.2% 44.0% X
Polish 1,313          0.1% 519                         0.1% 39.5%
Yiddish, Pennsylvania Dutch or other West Germanic languages 876             0.1% 187                         0.0% 21.3% X
Greek 753             0.1% 85                           0.0% 11.3%
Hebrew 738             0.1% 130                         0.0% 17.6%
Serbo‐Croatian 618             0.1% 348                         0.1% 56.3% X
Bengali 562             0.1% 109                         0.0% 19.4%
Khmer 554             0.1% 351                         0.1% 63.4%
Swahili or other languages of Central, Eastern, and Southern Africa 367             0.0% ‐                         0.0% 0.0% X
Armenian 170             0.0% ‐                         0.0% 0.0%
Hmong 99                0.0% ‐                         0.0% 0.0%
Haitian ‐              0.0% ‐                         0.0% NA
Navajo ‐              0.0% ‐                         0.0% NA
Other Native languages of North America ‐              0.0% ‐                         0.0% NA X
source American Community Survey, 2017, 1‐year estimates; Tables B16001 and S1810

Language Key Statistics

86



Attachment B‐2: Language Resources

Internet Form Phone Assistance Paper and Field Glossaries/ Identification Card Guides
Total Population Estimate (5 years and old) X X X X
Speak only English X X X X
Visually Impaired (calculated for total population) Braille and Large Print
Hearing Impaired (calculated for total population) Telecommunication Device Video Guide in ASL
Spanish X X X X X
Chinese (incl. Mandarin, Cantonese) Simplified Mandarin/Cantonese Simplified ? Simplified ?
Tagalog (incl. Filipino) Tagalog Tagalog Tagalog Tagalog
Persian (incl. Farsi, Dari) Farsi Farsi
Vietnamese X X X X
Russian X X X X
Hindi X X
Portuguese X X X X
Arabic X X X X
Punjabi X X
Korean X X X X
Nepali, Marathi, or other Indic languages Nepali, Marathi, Sinhala Nepali, Marathi, Sinhala
Other languages of Asia Burmese, Turkish Burmese, Turkish
French (incl. Cajun) French French French French
Japanese X X X X
Ilocano, Samoan, Hawaiian, or other Austronesian languages Ilocano, Indonesian Ilocano, Indonesian
Telugu X X
German X X
Urdu X X
Other and unspecified languages Hungarian Hungarian
Italian X X
Malayalam, Kannada, or other Dravidian languages Malayalam Malayalam
Thai, Lao, or other Tai‐Kadai languages Thai, Lao Thai, Lao
Yoruba, Twi, Igbo, or other languages of Western Africa Twi, Igbo, Yoruba Twi, Igbo, Yoruba
Tamil X X
Ukrainian or other Slavic languages Ukarainian, Slovak, Czech, Bulgarian, Lithuanian Ukarainian, Slovak, Czech, Bulgarian, Lithuanian
Other Indo‐European languages Romanian, Albanian Romanian, Albanian
Gujarati X X
Amharic, Somali, or other Afro‐Asiatic languages Amharic, Somali, Tigrinya Amharic, Somali, Tigrinya
Polish X X X X
Yiddish, Pennsylvania Dutch or other West Germanic languages Yiddish, Dutch Yiddish, Dutch
Greek X X
Hebrew X X
Serbo‐Croatian Serbian, Bosnian, and Croatian Serbian, Bosnian, and Croatian
Bengali X X
Khmer X X
Swahili or other languages of Central, Eastern, and Southern Africa Swahili Swahili
Armenian X X
Hmong X X
Haitian Haitian Creole Haitian Creole Haitian Creole Haitian Creole
Navajo X X
Other Native languages of North America
source American Community Survey, 2017, 1‐year estimates; Tables B16001 and S1810

TBD

Language Census Bureau State, RCBO, County, City, 
CBO, Other

87



Attachment C 
 

 

 

88



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT
STEERING COMMITTEE   8.           

Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: Federal, State and Regional Updates on Preparation for the Census 
Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.:  

Referral Name: 
Presenter: Barbara Riveira, County Admin

Office & Kristine Solseng, DCD
Contact: Kristine Solseng 925-674-7809 or

Barbara Riveira 925-335-1018

Referral History:
Federal/State/Regional Updates.

Referral Update:
Attached is March 3, 2019 article - U.S. Census Bureau Unveils 2020 Census Tagline. Shape
your future. START HERE. U.S. Census 2020

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
RECEIVE Federal, State, and Regional updates on preparation for the Census.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
U.S. Census Bureau Unveils 2020 Census Tagline

89

Tagline

Tagline



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: MONDAY, MARCH 04, 2019  

Census Bureau Unveils 2020 Census Communications 

Campaign Platform 

March 04, 2019  
CB19-26  

 

MARCH 4, 2019 – As promotional and outreach activities are ramping up across the nation 
ahead of the 2020 Census — from establishing local and state complete count committees, to 

diverse partners coming together to reduce the undercount of children and other hard to count 
populations — today the U.S. Census Bureau announced its long-planned communications 
campaign platform: “Shape your future. START HERE.” 

 

  

“We undertook an unprecedented amount of research to help us learn more about what potential 
barriers, attitudes and motivators America had about participating in the upcoming census,” said 
Census Bureau Director Dr. Steven Dillingham. “The 2020 platform arose from that research, 

and has been rigorously tested to ensure that our campaign effectively communicates that when 
the public responds to the 2020 Census, they will know they are helping to shape the future of 

their community for the next 10 years.” 

The Census Bureau and VMLY&R — the Census Bureau’s communications contractor — tested 
the platform in multiple languages and in diverse focus groups across the country. The resulting 
research was paired with the expertise of VMLY&R’s multicultural advertising agencies, 

seasoned in reaching diverse audiences. The 2020 Census advertising campaign will be in 
English and 12 other languages. 

The “Shape your future. START HERE.” platform will be incorporated across Census Bureau 

outreach and partnership awareness materials beginning this April, and then more broadly when 
the 2020 Census advertising campaign launches in January 2020. In this image, the tagline points 
to the 2020 Census logo reinforcing the message that the public can shape the future of their 

90

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/decennial-census/2020-census/planning-management/promo-print-materials.html


community by responding to the 2020 Census.. The availability of the creative platform will help 
guide outreach efforts being planned by states, local communities and nonprofit organizations. In 

addition, it allows partners to determine how they can complement the $500 million 
communications campaign created by the Census Bureau and VMLY&R. 

This is the third decennial census to include a dedicated advertising and communications 

operation. In the 2000 and 2010 Censuses, the Census Bureau also utilized advertising, 
partnership and communications campaigns to increase awareness and participation in the count. 
Higher self-response rates increase the accuracy of the census and save taxpayer money by 

lowering census follow-up costs for nonresponding households.     

The Census Bureau and VMLY&R are in the process of developing creative materials under the 
“Shape your future. START HERE.” platform. Those creative materials will be tested 

extensively around the country before they are built into ads for placement. 

 

  

The U.S. Constitution mandates that a census of the population be conducted once every 10 
years for the purposes of reapportioning Congress. Census data is also used to determine how 
more than $675 billion in federal funds are distributed back to states and local communities 

every year for services and infrastructure, including health care, jobs, schools, roads and 
businesses. 

### 

 

91

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/decennial-census/2020-census/planning-management/promo-print-materials.html


2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT STEERING
COMMITTEE   9.           

Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: Kick-Off Event
Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: 5  

Referral Name: Kick Off Event 
Presenter: Lauren Babb, District 4 Appointee Contact: Kristine Solseng

674-7809

Referral History:
At the February 19, 2019 Steering Committee meeting Lauren Babb and Sandy Trujillo
volunteered to start a working group to provide support for the Kick-Off event. Members of the
Committee were asked to email Barbara Riveira any ideas for the location of the event, event
activities, and what media outlets should be invited to the event. In addition, staff was instructed
to invite the County's Public Information Officer to the kick-off event. April 2, 2019 has been
selected as the Kick-off date to coincide State Census Event and other events around the State.
The Census Bureau also plans on announcing the 2020 Census Slogan on April 1, 2019.

Referral Update:
The proposed Kick-Off Event will be a media event on April 2, 2019 from 12:30 - 3:00 at the
Food Bank in Concord. The goal of the event is to highlight the importance of the Census and
highlight the work of one of our community partners. The Kick-Off Event will include a media
event followed by service to the Food Bank. The media event will include a short program with
speeches from representatives from the Food Bank and the County, with representation from our
various partners in attendance. Supervisor Burgis' speech will include a call for cities to adopt
Resolutions to recognize the importance of the 2020 U.S. Census and an invitation to community
members to attend future Regional Working Group workshops. Following the short program,
participants are encouraged to stay and help bag food to support the Food Bank.

As a follow up to the Kick-Off event, Steering Committee volunteers are being asked to give
presentations as members of the Speakers Bureau to City Councils about the importance of the
Census. Staff will create a tool kit for the Speaker Bureau, which will include a power point
presentation, talking point, key resources, and forms for interested parties.

Invitations to the event will be sent to mayors, city administrators, state senators and assembly
members, members of the Steering Committee, and interested parties.

92



Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Discuss options for a Census Kick-off and make recommendations.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
N/A

Attachments
Committee Member Suggestions - April 1 Kick-Off

93



Emailed From Committee Members – 
RE: April 1 Kick-Off Event Suggestions/Thoughts 
 
 
Fran Biderman – Member At-large 
For the  April 1 kick-off, would it make sense for each Supervisor to hold the kickoffs at 
their offices – that way they would be engaged, could advertise the kick off and regional 
subcommittees to their constituents (“come to the kickoff and get involved! ”), we wouldn’t 
have to look for spaces…just a thought.  
 
Melody Howe Weintraub – Member At-large 
I am meeting with faith leaders from around the county tomorrow.  I plan to tell them a 
Census Day Event is happening on April 1.  Do you have any more details?  I heard at the 
Steering Committee that people seem to prefer a central event in the morning and possibly 
regional events in the evening.  I support that idea but think that it is short notice to 
organize both of the events. 
 
Barbara Riveira – Staff  
The California Census Office is having a weeklong effort to promote California’s efforts to 
ensure a complete and accurate count in California.  The California Census Office will hold a 
press conference on April 2 at 11 a.m. with key state leaders to kick-off the week of action.   
 
The California Census Office is asking stakeholders and partners to hold local call to action 
events, meet with elected representatives and connect with the community between 
April 1-7.  Share events with the California Census Office – send an email to 
census2020events@census.ca.us and they will feature the details on the website and social 
media. For agencies promoting on social media add hashtag #BeCountedCA to your post.  
For general social media you can always use #CACensus#Census2020.  

94

mailto:census2020events@census.ca.us


2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT STEERING
COMMITTEE   10.           

Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: Language Accessibility for the Census Form and Promotional Materials
Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.: 6  

Referral Name: Language Presentation 
Presenter: Zhiyuan "John" Zhang, U.S. Census

Bureau
Contact: Barbara Riveira (925)

335-1018

Referral History:
At the February 19, 2019 Steering Committee meeting, Supervisor Burgis requested the U.S.
Census Bureau return to the Steering Committee to provide a presentation on language access. 

Referral Update:
Zhiyuan Zhang, or John, Partnership Specialist, U.S. Census Bureau, has joined us for the
presentation. Mr. Zhang was a college English teacher in China for seven years. In 1989 he came
to the United States to pursue graduate studies in American Studies at Smith College in
Massachusetts. After graduation, he traveled from the East Coast all the way to the West Coast to
learn about the American people and to experience the cultures, and finally settled down in the
Bay Area and raised three kids here.

John has been a business owner for over 20 years focusing on developing international training
programs for Chinese government officials, executives and professionals. Living in the Silicon
Valley, John witnessed the progress that technology presented as well as the environmental
damage caused by the huge accumulation of electronic waste. To better serve the community and
protect the environment, he set up a recycling business with a few friends to collect e-waste in the
Bay Area. As a local Bay Area resident, John’s goal is to get involved with communities and to
motivate everyone to participate in the 2020 Census. Please see the attached presentation
information provided by the U.S. Census Bureau.

Kristine Solseng, Conservation and Development Department will present information on
potential language barriers for certain hard to count populations in Contra Costa County.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
RECEIVE presentation on Language Accessibility from Zhiyuan "John" Zhang, U.S. Census

95



RECEIVE presentation on Language Accessibility from Zhiyuan "John" Zhang, U.S. Census
Bureau. RECEIVE presentation from Kristine Solseng, Conservation and Development
Department on potential language barriers for certain hard to count populations in Contra Costa
County.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
N/A

Attachments
Language Accessibility - US Census Bureau
Contra Costa County Languages Presentation
Contra Costa County Language Statistics
Census Bureau Resources for County Languages

96



Language Accessibility

for 2020 Census 

Zhiyuan “John” Zhang

Partnership Specialist 

U. S. Census Bureau 

zhiyuan.zhang@2020census.gov

510-761-1097

97

mailto:Zhiyuan.zhang@2020census.gov


2020 Census Language Program
Overview

2

• Identify ways to reduce language barriers for respondents of

Limited English Proficiency (LEP)

• Determine the optimal level of support in non-English languages

forLEPhouseholds completing the 2020 Census

• Optimize the non-English content of questionnaires and

associated non-questionnaire materials across data collection

modes and operations

• Ensure cultural relevancy and meaningful translation of 2020

Censusquestionnaires and associated non-questionnaire materials

98



2020 Census Language Program
Then and Now: Planned Changes for 2020

2010

PaperQuestionnaires

Telephone Questionnaire Assistance  

(Limited LanguageOptions)

FieldMaterials

Language Assistance Guides (Paper)

Language Identification Flashcard

“It’s Easy” Videos (viaComcast)

2020

Internet Instrument

Census Questionnaire Assistance  

(Expanded Language Options)

Field Enumeration Instrument

Language Assistance Guides  

(Paper and Internet)

PaperQuestionnaires

FieldMaterials

Language Identification Flashcard

3
99



Language Accessibility
Summary: 2020 Census Non-English Support

4

Internet Self-Response 

Census Questionnaire 

Assistance (CQA)

• 12 Non-English Languages

Language Guides 

(Video and Print)  

Language Glossaries                       

Language Identification Card

• 59 Non-English Languages

• Language Guides include American Sign 

Language, braille, large print

Paper Questionnaire & 

Mailing Materials  Field 

Enumeration Instrument & 

Materials

• Spanish

100



Language Accessibility
Language List: All Non-English Languages (in order—top to bottom, left to right)

5

Spanish Italian Khmer Tamil Croatian

Chinese Farsi Nepali Navajo Bulgarian

Vietnamese German Urdu Hungarian Twi

Korean Armenian Romanian Hebrew Lithuanian

Russian Hindi Telugu Malayalam Yoruba

Arabic Ukrainian Burmese Swahili Czech

Tagalog Bengali Punjabi Yiddish Igbo

Polish Greek Lao Indonesian Marathi

French Amharic Hmong Serbian Sinhala

Haitian 

Creole

Somali Albanian Tigrinya Slovak

Portuguese Thai Turkish Ilocano American Sign 

Language

Japanese Gujarati Bosnian Dutch

101



Language Accessibility
2020 Census Language List: Internet Self-Response, Census Questionnaire Assistance

6

Language

Limited English

Speaking

Households (MOE)

Cumulative Percent of Total

Limited- English-Speaking 

Households

1 Spanish 3,186,101 (12,273) 60.3

2 Chinese 447, 785 (3,571) 68.8

3 Vietnamese 174,439 (2,844) 72.1

4 Korean 166,917 (2,619) 75.2

5 Russian 145,174 (2,497) 78.0

6 Arabic 89,739 (2,255) 79.7

7 Tagalog 69,772 (1,664) 81.0

8 Polish 65,603 (1,665) 82.3

9 French 64,108 (1,620) 83.5

10 Haitian Creole 63,220 (1,918) 84.7

11 Portuguese 62,881 (2,063) 85.9

12 Japanese 59,586 (1,682) 87.0

102



Language Accessibility
Bilingual mailing is determined at the census tract level

An entire census tract is selected for English/Spanish bilingual 
mailing, if at least 20% of the occupied housing units might 
require Spanish assistance.  These are households in which at 
least one adult (age 15 or older) speaks Spanish and does not 
speak English "very well." 

All mailings will include the language assistance sheet, that 
informs households that they can complete their questionnaire 
via internet or phone in 12 non-English languages. 

103



• Conduct telephone interviews in non-

English languages

• Provide general information and answers to  

questions about the 2020 Census and 

instructions on completing the the 

questionnaires

• Available in the same number of languages 

as the  Internet instrument

Example: 2017 Census Test Census Questionnaire AssistanceInsert

8

Examples of Instruments/Materials Planned for 2020
Census Questionnaire Assistance (CQA)

104



• Assist non-English speaking  

respondents on filling out the  

Internet questionnaire

• Examples of video content:

• What are the questions andwhy

• Why participation in important

• How to select the language

• How to log in

• How to navigate

• How to submit

• Available via the internet

• Also used during partnership and  

communications events
Conceptual Example of Video Language AssistanceGuide

Examples of Instruments/Materials Planned for 2020
Video Language Assistance Guides

9
105



LANGUAGES SPOKEN IN 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

Analysis and Resources for Outreach

106



Key Points

■ Over 387,000 (about 36%) of Contra Costa County 
residents speak a language other than English at 
home. 

■ 152,665 residents do not speak English very well. 

■ Given the largest city in the County is about 
130,000, non-English speakers comprise a larger 
portion of the population than any given city. 

■ There are 23,758 Limited English Households in 
Contra Costa County

107



Population by Language Spoken
■ More than 40 languages are spoken in Contra Costa County. Top 10 include: 

■ Spanish

■ Chinese (includes Mandarin / Cantonese)

■ Tagalog (includes Filipino)

■ Persian (includes Farsi, Dari)

■ Vietnamese

■ Russian

■ Hindi

■ Portuguese

■ Arabic

■ Punjabi

108



Summary of all Languages

109

https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/58047/CountywideLanguageStats
https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/58047/CountywideLanguageStats


Summary of Language Resources

110

https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/58048/LanguageResources
https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/58048/LanguageResources


Contra Costa County Language 
Landscape

https://arcg.is/0HLe8v
111

https://arcg.is/0HLe8v
https://arcg.is/0HLe8v


Key Statistics for Languages Spoke in Contra Costa County

Estimate Percent of County Less than Very Well Percent of all  LVS LVW as Percent of Language More than 1 language
Total Population Estimate (5 years and old) 1,082,244         100.0% 152,665                          39.4% 14.1%
Speak only English 694,824            64.2% NA NA NA
Visually Impaired (calculated for total population) 21,606               1.9% NA NA NA
Hearing Impaired (calculated for total population) 35,087               3.1% NA NA NA
Spanish 196,833            18.2% 81,467                            21.0% 41.4%
Chinese (incl. Mandarin, Cantonese) 39,569               3.7% 21,288                            5.5% 53.8% X
Tagalog (incl. Filipino) 31,292               2.9% 11,012                               2.8% 35.2% X
Persian (incl. Farsi, Dari) 9,874                 0.9% 4,446                              1.1% 45.0% X
Vietnamese 9,102                 0.8% 4,814                              1.2% 52.9%
Russian 7,990                 0.7% 2,735                              0.7% 34.2%
Hindi 6,809                 0.6% 1,464                              0.4% 21.5%
Portuguese 6,583                 0.6% 2,927                              0.8% 44.5%
Arabic 6,498                 0.6% 1,170                              0.3% 18.0%
Punjabi 6,109                 0.6% 2,192                              0.6% 35.9%
Korean 5,815                 0.5% 3,520                              0.9% 60.5%
Nepali, Marathi, or other Indic languages 5,708                 0.5% 1,650                              0.4% 28.9% X
Other languages of Asia 5,177                 0.5% 2,080                              0.5% 40.2% X
French (incl. Cajun) 4,806                 0.4% 571                                 0.1% 11.9%
Japanese 4,692                 0.4% 1,752                              0.5% 37.3%
Ilocano, Samoan, Hawaiian, or other Austronesian languages 4,671                 0.4% 1,375                              0.4% 29.4% X
Telugu 4,605                 0.4% 344                                 0.1% 7.5%
German 3,523                 0.3% 239                                 0.1% 6.8%
Urdu 3,148                 0.3% 555                                 0.1% 17.6%
Other and unspecified languages 2,450                 0.2% 438                                 0.1% 17.9% X
Italian 2,204                 0.2% 385                                 0.1% 17.5%
Malayalam, Kannada, or other Dravidian languages 1,974                 0.2% 49                                   0.0% 2.5% X
Thai, Lao, or other Tai‐Kadai languages 1,965                 0.2% 991                                 0.3% 50.4% X
Yoruba, Twi, Igbo, or other languages of Western Africa 1,932                 0.2% 1,134                              0.3% 58.7% X
Tamil 1,894                 0.2% 124                                 0.0% 6.5%
Ukrainian or other Slavic languages 1,655                 0.2% 492                                 0.1% 29.7% X
Other Indo‐European languages 1,614                 0.1% 583                                 0.2% 36.1% X
Gujarati 1,452                 0.1% 512                                 0.1% 35.3%
Amharic, Somali, or other Afro‐Asiatic languages 1,426                 0.1% 627                                 0.2% 44.0% X
Polish 1,313                 0.1% 519                                 0.1% 39.5%
Yiddish, Pennsylvania Dutch or other West Germanic languages 876                     0.1% 187                                 0.0% 21.3% X
Greek 753                     0.1% 85                                   0.0% 11.3%
Hebrew 738                     0.1% 130                                 0.0% 17.6%
Serbo‐Croatian 618                     0.1% 348                                 0.1% 56.3% X
Bengali 562                     0.1% 109                                 0.0% 19.4%
Khmer 554                     0.1% 351                                 0.1% 63.4%
Swahili or other languages of Central, Eastern, and Southern Africa 367                     0.0% ‐                                  0.0% 0.0% X
Armenian 170                     0.0% ‐                                  0.0% 0.0%
Hmong 99                       0.0% ‐                                  0.0% 0.0%
Haitian ‐                      0.0% ‐                                  0.0% NA
Navajo ‐                      0.0% ‐                                  0.0% NA
Other Native languages of North America ‐                      0.0% ‐                                  0.0% NA X
source American Community Survey, 2017, 1‐year estimates; Tables B16001 and S1810

Language Key Statistics

112



Language Resources

Internet Form Phone Assistance Paper and Field Language Glossaries/ Identification Card Guides
Total Population Estimate (5 years and old) X X X X
Speak only English X X X X
Visually Impaired (calculated for total population) Braille and Large Print
Hearing Impaired (calculated for total population) Telecommunication Device Video Guide in American Sign Language
Spanish X X X X X
Chinese (incl. Mandarin, Cantonese) Simplified Mandarin/Cantonese Simplified ? Simplified ?
Tagalog (incl. Filipino) Tagalog Tagalog Tagalog Tagalog
Persian (incl. Farsi, Dari) Farsi Farsi
Vietnamese X X X X
Russian X X X X
Hindi X X
Portuguese X X X X
Arabic X X X X
Punjabi X X
Korean X X X X
Nepali, Marathi, or other Indic languages Nepali, Marathi, Sinhala Nepali, Marathi, Sinhala
Other languages of Asia Burmese, Turkish Burmese, Turkish
French (incl. Cajun) French French French French
Japanese X X X X
Ilocano, Samoan, Hawaiian, or other Austronesian languages Ilocano, Indonesian Ilocano, Indonesian
Telugu X X
German X X
Urdu X X
Other and unspecified languages Hungarian Hungarian
Italian X X
Malayalam, Kannada, or other Dravidian languages Malayalam Malayalam
Thai, Lao, or other Tai‐Kadai languages Thai, Lao Thai, Lao
Yoruba, Twi, Igbo, or other languages of Western Africa Twi, Igbo, Yoruba Twi, Igbo, Yoruba
Tamil X X
Ukrainian or other Slavic languages Ukarainian, Slovak, Czech, Bulgarian, Lithuanian Ukarainian, Slovak, Czech, Bulgarian, Lithuanian
Other Indo‐European languages Romanian, Albanian Romanian, Albanian
Gujarati X X
Amharic, Somali, or other Afro‐Asiatic languages Amharic, Somali, Tigrinya Amharic, Somali, Tigrinya
Polish X X X X
Yiddish, Pennsylvania Dutch or other West Germanic languages Yiddish, Dutch Yiddish, Dutch
Greek X X
Hebrew X X
Serbo‐Croatian Serbian, Bosnian, and Croatian Serbian, Bosnian, and Croatian
Bengali X X
Khmer X X
Swahili or other languages of Central, Eastern, and Southern Africa Swahili Swahili
Armenian X X
Hmong X X
Haitian Haitian Creole Haitian Creole Haitian Creole Haitian Creole
Navajo X X
Other Native languages of North America
source American Community Survey, 2017, 1‐year estimates; Tables B16001 and S1810

City/CBO/Other

TBD TBD TBD TBD

Language Census Bureau State RCBO County

113



2020 CENSUS COMPLETE COUNT STEERING
COMMITTEE   11.           

Meeting Date: 03/18/2019  

Subject: REVIEW MEETING SCHEDULE AND WORK PLAN
Submitted For: David Twa, County Administrator 
Department: County Administrator
Referral No.:  

Referral Name: 
Presenter: Barbara Riveira, County Admin Office Contact: Barbara Riveira (925)

335-1018

Referral History:
It is anticipated that the Steering Committee will meet at least once a month through Fall 2020 to
complete the actual Census and oversee any post-Census activities. A meeting schedule and work
plan through December 2019 was proposed at the February 19, 2019 meeting. The work plan was
designed to coincide with the key milestones identified, so far, by the State. Additional meetings
may be required as new information becomes available. Committee members were asked to
anticipate these meeting dates in their personal schedules, as achieving a quorum will be essential
for the Steering Committee to be able to consistently meet and conduct the necessary business.

Referral Update:
At the February 19, 2019, Steering Committee meeting Supervisor Burgis reviewed the meeting
schedule and stated committee members can add additional items to the work plan. The
committee unanimously voted to meet on the third Monday of every month from 12:00 noon to
2:00 p.m.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
A new meeting schedule is provided including the dates and location of the meetings. The
meetings are scheduled for the third Monday of every month through December 2019, from 12:00
noon to 2:00 p.m., with the exception of the July meeting time being scheduled for a later time,
from 2:00 to 4:00 p.m. due to the availability of the meeting room.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
2019 Meeting Schedule

114



115



 

 

2020 Census Complete Count Steering Committee 

2019 Meeting Schedule 
3rd Monday at 12:00 Noon 

CCC EMS Agency, 777 Arnold Drive, Paramount Room, Martinez 

Meeting 
Date 

Subject Staff Contacts 

February 19  

 Census Overview/Updates 
 Complete Count Committee Overview 

 Strategic Plan/Budget 

 Working Group Structure 
 Kick-Off Event – April 1, 2019 

 Meeting Schedule 
 
 

Barbara Riveira, County 

Administrator's Office 

Phone (925) 335-1018 
barbara.riveira@cao.cccounty.us  

Kristine Solseng, Conservation 

and Development                  

Phone (925) 674-7809 

Kristine.Solseng@dcd.cccounty.us 

March 18  

 State/Federal Update 

 Strategic Plan / Budget Recommendation 
to Board of Supervisors 

 Hard to Count Population 1 Study Session 

 Working Group Reports 

 Kick-Off Event – April 1, 2019 Update 
 

 

April 15  

 State/Federal Update 

 Kick-Off Event Update 
 Working Groups Report 

 Hard to Count Population 1 Study Session- 
Continued 

 Draft Mini-Grant RFP Review 
 

 

May 20  

 State/Federal Update 
 Working Group Updates 

 Hard to Count Population 2 Study Session  

 Mini-Grant RFP Approval  
 

 

June 17  

 State/Federal Update 

 Working Group Updates 
 Hard to Count Population 3 Study Session  

 Initial Non Response Follow Up Ideas 
 
 

 

 

116

mailto:barbara.riveira@cao.cccounty.us


 

 

July 15 
Time Change 
2:00 to 4:00 

 

 State/Federal Update 
 Working Group Updates 

 Hard to Count Population 4 Study Session 

 Mini-Grant Phase I Recommendations to BOS 
 “Educate” messaging plan 

 

 

August 19  
 State/Federal Update 

 Working Group Updates 

 Hard to Count Population 5 Study Session  

 Review Draft  Implementation Plan 
 

 

September 16  

 State/Federal Update 
 Working Group Updates / Mini-Grant Updates 

 Approve Implementation Plan 
 

 

October 21  

 State/Federal Update 

 Working Group Updates / Mini-Grant Updates  

 Mini-Grant Phase II Recommendations to BOS 
 Adopt a Block Missing Areas Review 

 

 

November 18  
 State/Federal Update 

 Working Group Updates / Mini-Grant Updates 

 Review Draft Training for QAC/QAK and Canvassing 
 

 

December 16  

 State/Federal Update 

 Working Group Updates / Mini-Grant Updates 
  “Motivate” messaging plan 

 

 

 

117


	Agenda
	3_RECORD OF ACTION FOR THE FEBRUARY 19, 2019 MEETING
	3_ATT_DRAFT 2020 Census Steering Committee Record of Action for February 19, 2019
	4_RALPH M. BROWN ACT AND COUNTY BETTER GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE
	4_ATT_Presentation-Open Meeting Policies
	4_ATT_Brown Act - BGO Summary
	5_Governance and Committees
	6_DISCUSSION OF THE ROLE OF THE REGIONAL WORKING GROUPS
	6_ATT_Regional Working Group Role and Responsibilities
	6_ATT_Map of Proposed Regional Working Groups
	7_Review of DRAFT Strategic Outreach Plan
	7_ATT_Draft Strategic Plan
	7_ATT_A. Maps
	7_ATT_B1. Language Stats
	7_ATT_B2. Language Resources
	7_ATT_C. Timeline
	8_Federal, State and Regional Updates on Preparation for the Census 
	8_ATT_U.S. Census Bureau Unveils 2020 Census Tagline
	9_Kick-Off Event
	9_ATT_Committee Member Suggestions - April 1 Kick-Off
	10_Language Accessibility for the Census Form and Promotional Materials
	10_ATT_Language Accessibility - US Census Bureau
	10_ATT_Contra Costa County Languages Presentation
	10_ATT_Contra Costa County Language Statistics
	10_ATT_Census Bureau Resources for County Languages
	11_REVIEW MEETING SCHEDULE AND WORK PLAN
	11_ATT_2019 Meeting Schedule



